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Minutes:

Chairman Freborg opened the hearing on SB 2344, a bill relating to the preparation and
provision of meals by institutions of higher education and school districts. All members were
present.

Senator Gary Lee introduced the bill. (Written testimony attached)

Nicki Weissman, North Dakota Hospitality Association, testified in favor of the bill. (Written
testimony attached)

Senator Flakoll asked if she could explain the differences in tax structure.

Ms. Weissman said she is not a tax expert. She believes the colleges get advantageous tax

treatment.

Senator Flakoll said last week he heard a bill that involves school children raising a garden and

ultimately selling their produce at a farmer's market. Would this bill prohibit that project?
Ms. Weissman asked if he meant the colleges or the farmers.

Senator Flakoll said the school district.

Ms. Weissman said if it was a town of under 5000 people, it would not be a problem.
Senator Taylor said the meals on wheels shows a $1.3 million on the fiscal note, are there

other institutions that could provide those meals?
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Ms. Weissman said in Minot the city does it. Pete Zimmerman with the Holiday Inn brought up
that example and he says it works very well. She does not have knowledge of Bismarck.
Senator Taylor said if the city does it, is that helping private business?

Ms. Weissman said that is a good point.

Senator Bakke asked the estimated loss to the private sector because of this issue.

Ms. Weissman said she doesn’t know. If the Holiday Inn catered a dinner for 1000 people and
it was $16 - $18 per person, that would be a big potential amount of dollars. There are many
hotels across the state that run into this. The hoteliers are the one who don't like to compete
against the colleges.

Chairman Freborg said the fiscal note showed a $1.3 million negative on revenue.

Senator Gary Lee asked if she agrees with the fiscal note. |s there a portion businesses would
like to capture themselves?

Ms. Weissman said she doesn’t know but she is sure they wouldn't mind having that.

Senator Flakoll said he has a case in his community where one non profit could not find
anyone to bring their food in but they were able to work it out with one of the campuses at a
good rate. If someone else was going to come in and charge a rate say $2 per person more,
won't the state be subsidizing those private businesses because they are going to be paying
for the non profit.

Ms. Weissman said does he mean the state is paying for it because they are funding the non
profit?

Senator Flakoll said in the case where the non profit receives money from the state to provide
meals for certain sectors, free and reduced for example, in a non school setting. We have to
pay for that by the state but we can't get the best rate, won'’t the state be subsidizing the

private businesses?
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Ms. Weissman said that is probably a good point. There are several people across the state,
for example in Steele, but that person could not be here because of an iliness with her
husband and the hoteliers have very busy schedules but they are concerned.

Senator Flakoll asked why it is limited to 5000.

Ms. Weissman said that is where they wanted to go with it.

Dixie Schultz, Child Nutrition Director for Mandan Public Schools, testified in opposition to the
bill. (Written testimony attached)

Ms. Schultz submitted testimony from Mark Lemer, Business Manager and Jan Sliper, Food
Services Director, West Fargo Public Schools. (Written testimony attached)

Chairman Freborg asked if she is sure furnishing food for a school board meeting would be
prohibited by the bill? Would that not be considered a program affiliated with the school?

Ms. Schultz said she wasn't sure, it would be difficult if some people could have a meal and
some could not.

Chairman Freborg said he wouldn’t think it would matter who attends a school board meeting,
it would be considered a school function.

Prakash Mathew, Vice President for Student Affairs, NDSU, testified in opposition to the bill.
(Written testimony attached)

Senator Gary Lee asked if the Meals on Wheels contract is a competitive bid.

Mr. Mathews said yes, someone else will speak about that.

Senator Flakoll asked if the Alumni Center is considered off campus.

Mr. Mathews said they consider it to be on campus. The only income that they get that is from
events not affiliated with the university is $50,000. That is unsolicited.

Senator Flakoll asked how many non duplicated senior meals are served per year.

Mr. Mathews said he did not know.
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Senator Taylor asked of the $50,000 off campus, they are not alumni groups or other groups
organized by the university?

Mr. Mathews said the events are not organized by the university, the people are affiliated with
the university and may have attended an event at the alumni center and liked the quality of
service and the product so they come to NDSU for those food services. Itis 6 or 7 small
events.

Senator Gary Lee asked if they would not be able to provide services to the Alumni Center.

Mr. Mathews said they are assuming no change in the alumni center, they are one of 7
caterers that serve the alumni center. The customers can pick and choose.

Brian Arett, executive director of the Fargo Senior Commission, testified in opposition to the
bill. (Written testimony attached)

Linda Glaser, Director of Child Nutrition Programs, Department of Public Instruction, testified in
opposition to the bill. (Written testimony attached)

Bev Neilson, North Dakota School Boards Association, testified in opposition to the bill. The
way the bill is worded, in Higher Education it is permitted to serve on their own property but it
does not say that for the public schools, it would clarify a lot if that wording was changed.
Those community schools which choose to serve child care centers or head start programs are
doing a service for their communities by serving those non profits. In the Fargo area, this bil!
would be great for Concordia’s food services.

Chuck Fleming, Marketing Director for the North Dakota Department of Agriculture said he was
not necessarily opposed to the bill but is concerned about its affect on their joint project with
Department of Public Instruction and Extension for school gardening. They worked with the 4"

grade in Burlington and the Granville FFA in planting gardens. At Granville, they sold at the
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farmer's market. If they were in communities over 5000 population, they would not be able to
sell at the farmer’'s market and that is an important part of their projects.
Chairman Freborg closed the hearing on SB 2344.

Senator Gary Lee said he was ready to shoot the dog but the parties have an interest in fixing

the bill. He will have an amendment by tomorrow.



2007 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

. Bill/Resolution No. 2344

Senate Education Committee
[ ] Check here for Conference Committee

Hearing Date: January 31, 2007

Recorder Job Number: 244?/\

Committee Clerk Signature

2

A

Minutes:

Chairman Freborg opened the discussion on SB 2344,

Senator Gary Lee the intent of the bill is to level the playing field between university and school

district food services and private business. The universities and school districts had some
. issues. He sat down with all parties and they have worked out a solution which is a hog house

amendment to the bill. In a lot of cases the school district or university food service is the only

possible provider of these meals and services. It would aliow NDSU to continue providing

meals for the Meals on Wheels program. It makes the bill better; it cleans up the areas of

concern and may take away the fiscal note.

Senator Gary Lee moved amendment 70832.0102, second by Senator Flakoll.

Senator Taylor said if it takes away the fiscal note, it has not really removed the concerns of

private industry.

Senator Gary Lee said one issue was Meals on Wheels, now NDSU would be able to keep

providing that service.

Senator Taylor asked how the amendment still permits Meals on Wheels. He reviewed the

. language and thinks he now understands.
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Senator Flakall confirmed the legislative intent is to allow NDSU to furnish meals for Meals on
Wheels.

Senator Gary Lee said that is correct, that is the intent and the agreement. Anita Thomas

wrote the amendment.

Chairman Freborg discussed the need for a new fiscal note. Senator Gary Lee will check into
it.

The motion passed 5-0-0.

Senator Gary Lee moved a Do Pass As Amended on SB 2344, second by Senator Taylor.

The motion passed 5-0-0. Senator Gary Lee will carry the bill.




FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Councll
04/16/2007

Amendment to: Engrossed
SB 2344

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the stale fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current faw.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General |[Other Funds| General Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues {$175,000 ($175,000)
Expenditures
Appropriations
1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.
2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Limits off-campus catering to those events organized predominantly for persons and events affliated with the
institution.

. B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Loss of auxiliary revenues in dining services.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue fype and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Estimated loss of revenue to dining services based on limiting off-campus catering events. The off-campus events
help subsidize the cost of dining services, which helps keep down meal costs for all students. Largest revenue loss at
UND from bakery service sales to Altru Hospital.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounis. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
itemn, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the execulive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

[Name: Laura Glatt Agency: NDUS
. Phone Number: 328-4116 Date Prepared:  04/16/2007
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Requested by Legislative Council
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Amendment to: Engrossed
SB 2344

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
General |Other Funds| General |QOtherFunds| General |Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues {$200,000) ($200,000)
Expenditures
Appropriations

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, inciuding description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Limits off-campus catering to those events organized predominantly for persons and events affliated with the
institution.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis,

Loss of auxiliary revenues in dining services.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Estimated loss of revenue to dining services based on limiting off-campus catering events. The off-campus events
help subsidize the cost of dining services, which helps keep down meal costs for all students.

B. Expenditures: Expiain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

Name: Laura Glatt Agency: NDUS
Phone Number: 328-4116 Date Prepared: 03/19/2007




FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/02/2007

. Amendment to: SB 2344

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
General Other Funds General |Other Funds| General Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues ($200,000 ($200,000)
Expenditures
Appropriations
18. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.
2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters}.

Limits off-campus catering to those events organized predominantly for persons and events affliated with the
institution.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Loss of auxiliary revenues in dining services,

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Estimated loss of revenue to dining services based on limiting off-campus catering events. The off-campus events
help subsidize the cost of dining services, which helps keep down meal costs for all students.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates fo a
continuing appropriation.

IName: Laura Glatt Agency: NDUS
Phone Number: 328-4116 Date Prepared: 02/02/2007




FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council
01/22/2007

. BilllResolution No.:  SB 2344

1A. State fiscal effect: [dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared fo
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
General |Other Funds| Generali |OtherFunds| General |Other Funds
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues {$1,320,000 ($1,500,000)
Expenditures
Appropriations

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /denlify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2005-2007 Biennium 2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Limits off-campus catering to those events organized predominantly for persons and events affliated with the
institution.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Loss of auxiliary revenues in dining services.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please.
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Estimated loss of revenue to dining services based on limiting off-campus catering events. The off-campus events
help subsidize the cost of dining services, which helps keep down meal costs for all students. Also, catering services
are provided for community needs at times, such as Meals of Wheels, were no other alternatives are available.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is alsc included in the executive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

Name: Laura Glatt Agency: NDUS
Phone Number: 328-4116 Date Prepared: 01/24/2007
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January 31, 2007

. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2344

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the provision of catering services by institutions of higher education and school
districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Ceniury
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy. An
institution under the control of the state board of higher education may enter a contract
to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs
not affiliated with the institution and may provide catering services for an event that is

not held on property owned by the institution if the event is organized predominantly for
persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held predominantly for persons
enrolled in the institution, or the event is held under the auspices of the institution,
provided the institution first establishes a policy regarding such eentraets services and
specifically eddressirg addresses issues refated to competition with private sector
entities. An institution under the control of the state board of higher education may not
advertlse to the general publlc |ts thlmgness to prowde meaJe—enaeke—e-r—ether—Feed
gHen the services permitted

under th|s sectlon

. SECTICN 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals.

1. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare and
provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs not
affiliated with the school district and may provide catering services for an
event not held on property of the school district—previded-ary-persenthat

- ; | | . o f

8 re if the event
is orqanlzed predomlnantlv for Dersons afflllated W|th the school district, the

event is held predominantly for persons enrolled in or employed by the
school district, or the event is held under the auspices of the district,
prowded the board of the district first establishes a policy regarding such
services and specifically addresses issues related to competition with
private sector entities able-end-willing-to-enterinto-such-areentract.

2. The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public its
willingness to provide

meas—shacks—erotherfood-servicesferpersens-or
pregrarms-Rot-afiliated-with-the-distriet the services permitted under this

section.

I Page No. 1 70832.0102



Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-22-1743
February 1, 2007 9:19 a.m. Carrier: G. Lee
Insert LC: 70832.0102 Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2344: Education Committee (Sen. Freborg, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS
AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2344 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the provision of catering services by institutions of higher education and
school districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy. An
institution under the controi of the state board of higher education may enter a contract
to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs
not affiliated with the institution and may provide catering services for an event that is
not held on property owned by the institution if the event is organized predominantly for
persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held predominantly for persons
enrolled in the institution, or the event is held under the auspices of the institution,
provided the institution first establishes a policy regarding such sentraets services and
specificallyaddressing addresses issues related to compestition with private sector
entities. An institution under the control of the state board of higher education may not
advertise to the general public its willingness to provide meals—sracks—erotherfoed
sorvices-forpersens-erpregramsrot-atiiated-with-the-institution the services permitted

under this section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals.

1. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare and
provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs not
affiliated with the school district and may provide catering services for an

event not held on property of the school district—previded-anypersenthat
wishes—lo—emer—a—econtract—with—the—beard—under—this—seetion—first

demonsiratesto-the-satisfastion-of-the-beardthatthereare-ne if the event
is organized predominantly for persons affiliated with the school district,
the event is held predominantly for persons enrolled in or employed by the
school district, or the event is held under the auspices of the district,
provided the board of the district first establishes a policy regarding such

services and specifically addresses issues related to competition with
private sector entities able-ard-willing-to-onterinto-sueh-a-contract.

2. The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public its
willingness to provide

wegam&ne#a#&a@ed—wﬁh—the—éasme-t the services permitted under this

section.

(2) DESK, (3} COMM Page No. 1 SR-22-1743
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Minutes:

Senator Gary Lee, District 22, introduced the bill. (Testimony Attached.) He advised the
Committee that there may be some more work to be done on this bill. There may some more
questions on the language of the bill.

Senator David O’Connell, District 6, also a sponsor of the bill, testified in favor of the bill
except in Section 2, | am worried about the campus at Bottineau and where it says school
district in the bill. | talked to the university system upstairs and they think it should mention
“campus’—any campus under 5000. In Bottineau they are the only ones in the city that does
this kind of work. That's the concern we have. |talked to Senator Lee and if that change
could be made, it would be good.

Chairman Kelsch: So it would read “any school district or campus under 5000.”
Representative Herbel: Do you want it to read campus under 50007 Or city of 50007
Senator O’Connell: It should be city under 5000.

Robert Harms, lobbyist for the ND Hospitality Association, testified in favor of the bill.
(Testimony Attached.) We are in favor of getting publicly-funded entities out of the catering
business where they compete unfairly with private sector catering businesses. He discussed
some amendments the Hospitality Association proposed. (Attached.)

Representative Wall: Would you clarify for me the 5000 persons?
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Harms: What we are proposing in the amendment that in higher education there be three
exceptions that can cater and those are in communities of 5000 or less if the board is satisfied
that no one else can provide those services then they can enter into catering activity. |
wanted also to mention one other thing. We've had discussion with NDSU and members of
the higher education community who were supportive of the amendment that Senator
O'Connell mentioned that would accommodate smaller colleges such as Bottineau and
Mayville. Secondly, | wanted to add that we have spoken with NDSU particularly and they
have a program where they provide service for meals on wheels and we think the current bill
the way it is written accommodates that and we support that provision.

Chairman Kelsch: What precipitated the changes?

Harms: Over the last couple of years we have heard of a couple of instances where,
particularly on the higher education side, are catering events off campus where they are
essentially competing private business and they have the advantage of being publicly funded
and paying considerably less for insurance, wages, overhead, and facilities. That's the driver
for the bill. The K-12 component was less of a concern and we're not intending to have any
impact on concessions in the schools that are currently taking place.

Chairman Kelsch: How does it affect the programs that currently provide meals for Head
Start or other programs such as that?

Harms: There is a program with Head Start in place and | think you will hear from proponents
on that. The current law says that if the school satisfies itself that no one else in the
community is willing and able to provide those services; we think the engrossed bill probably

expands that activity. That's one of the reasons we advanced that amendment you have in

front of you. From the Hospitality standpoint, we think we may have lost ground in Section 2

. of the engrossed bill. But we would be comfortable with that.
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Representative Haas: What about the instance where a university contracts with a private
. enterprise third party for food services? There are instances of that now.
Harms: What we would envision is if the university is using a third-party contractor, that
contractor steps into the shoes of the university. | don’t think we make a distinction there. It's
just where the university or their third-party contractor is competing off campus then they have
to satisfy one of those exceptions in the engrossed bill.
Representative Mueller: It is conceivable that a food service company within the community
of the college might exist could be that third party that was referenced. How would that work
in to the position you are taking on the bill.
Harms: If the third party, in the biil as it is written, applies to the institutions of higher
education, not to those they contract. For example, let's say I'm the president of Dickinson
State and | have a contract with a company in Dickinson to provide our food service for
. Dickenson State, you also have your independent company that is engaged is catering
activities. We don't think the bill would affect your private business activities competing with
another private food company that is located in the same community for catering services. |
don't think the bill is intended to impact private sector activities. It is designed to apply to
higher education.
Representative Wall: Under letter “c” it says unless the event is held under the auspices of
the college. What do auspices mean to you?
Harms: The usual and ordinary meaning of the word. Let's say NDSU is hosting a NCAA
event at the Ramada—it would be under the auspices of NDSU. What we are getting to is
when the Chamber of Commerce has a function at the Ramada, that function is not to be

catered by NDSU.
. Janna Stoskopf, dean of Student Life at North Dakota State University, testified in favor

of the bill. (Testimony Attached.)
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Representative Hunskor: What is your response to the proposed amendments?

Stoskopf: Although | have not seen the proposed amendments, from the discussion | don't
anticipate it would have any affect on us.

Brian Arett, executive director of the Fargo Senior Commission, Inc., testified in favor of
the bill as engrossed. (Testimony Attached.)

Representative Mueller: Maybe you are seeing something in this bill that | am not. You
said in lines 7-9 you are reading into it that catering work by NDSU for the seniors program
wouldn’t be affected. Explain to me how you are finding that in those lines.

Arett: The key is may. .. That tells me that if you are a program as we are, they will be able
to enter into contract with us.

Representative Mueller: Did I hear you say your program is affiliated with NDSU.

Arett: No, only that we contract with them. If this language is not accomplishing what | think it
is, then we don't support this bill as it will have a significant impact on our program and it
needs to be clarified to make an allowance for meals for the elderly. | would ask that that
change be made. That would be a significant impact on our agency. [t would be quite a
disruption if we were not able to work with NDSU. {t may drive us to catering business across
the river. There are a couple of higher education institutions that we would have to contact to
try to control our costs.

Representative Herbel: Speaking of that—does Morehead State do any catering services?
Arett: They do catering. | don’t know the extent of the catering they do. More than
Morehead State, Concordia College does a significant amount of catering with organizations

not affiliated with the University.

Opposition:

.Jim Borkowski, Minot State University in Bottineau, testified in opposition to the bill. We

are in opposition to the bill for several reasons. | want to make a point of clarification.
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Sedesko Food Services does provide our total food service operation for our campus. I'm

. somewhat confused as to whether this bill applies to us or not, but I'm going to proceed as if it
d-oes. In the city of Bottineau, Sedesco Operations is the only caterer that is capable of
providing services for large events such as annual meetings, weddings, reunions and things of
that nature. Their annual revenues are not that large, they are $50.0 - $60.0 and 80% of that
is not related to campus operations. They employ part-time students that help them in their
operations. Those positions would be lost. As part of the catering operations, MSUB does
receive 12.5% of the catering revenues which amounts to about $5.0 - $7.0 per year. These
revenues are used to partially fund the annual maintenance cost of the cafeteria and for
equipment replacement within the cafeteria. The bottom line is if Sedesco were not allowed to
do catering services in the community, it would mean an increased cost to our students not
only the loss of employment and the revenues. That would mean a loss of about $15.0 -

. $20.0 that would have to be passed on to our students. That would represent an increase of
about 1% annually to each of our students.
Representative Haas: I'm still trying to clear the muddy water with the third-party contractor
like Sedesco. When they prepare a catered service for some function that is totally unrelated
to the state school, do they use your facility to prepare it?
Borkowski: That is correct.
Representative Herbel: What's the fiscal note on this?
Chairman Kelsch: It's a negative. The schools are now receiving money for doing this and
this represents the loss of revenue. What they are doing now is using these funds to
subsidize student meals and keep those student meal costs low.

Allison, Dybing-Driessen, director of Early Explorer Head Start in North Central ND,

.testified in opposition to the bill. | am deeply concerned at the language of this bill and its

impact on Head Start and child care programs across the state of ND. We are programs not
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directly affiliated with the public schools. If SB 2344 passes, it may impact our ability to
. contract for services with public schools. Public schools are natural partners for Head Start
programs. Many of our classrooms are located within the public schools. The meals are
developmentally appropriate. My program advertises annually for food services in the
communities we serve. All food service providers have the opportunity to submit a bid.
Restaurants have contacted the program to find out more information and have determined
there is just not enough money to make it worth their interest. We are not a large ticket item.
We are looking at two different issues. We are looking at catered events and on-going
contractual services. | ask the Committee to revisit the language in this bill and differentiate
from catered to on-going contractual services so we may continue to provide the highest
quality food to low income families.
JoAnn Braeger, director, West River Head Start in SouthCentral ND, testified in
. opposition to the bill. (Testimony Attached.)
Miss Brager distributed a letter that Sharon A. Hanson wrote to Representative Haas for the
Committee to review. (Attached.)
Representative Mueller: One part of the bill we have before us talks about events under the
auspices of the district. is there any way that the Head Start people could be in some way
tied into the auspices of the district?
Brager: We have collaborative agreements with the local public school. It's a requirement of
the Head Start performance standards to have those agreements. We, speaking for West
River Head Start, our grantee is HIT Incorporated. It is a private non-profit agency. We are
not under the auspices of the public schools.
Representative Mueller: If we pass HB 1320, we could make the case.

‘ Brager: | look forward to the passing of that bill.

Chairman Kelsch: It may not impact every Head Start.
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Cherrie Johnson, family support coordinator for the Carson Head Start Center, testified
in opposition to the bill. (Testimony Attached.)

Representative Haas: |s the Rooseveit Public School District your fiscal agent? Or are you
simply a cooperative agreement?

Johnson: HIT Inc. is our grantee. We cooperate with the school system and we are in their
building, but they are not our grantee.

Caitlin McDonald, on behalf of the YMCAs of North Dakota, testified that they are neither
in support or oppose HB 2344. (Testimony Attached.) They have some concerns about
how it will be interpreted and stated they are willing to work with the Committee to work on the
bill.

Dean Kinnoin, manager, Child and Adult Care Food Program, DP|, testified in opposition

to the bill. (Testimony Attached.)

There was no further testimony. Chairman Kelsch closed the hearing of SB 2344.
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Chairman Kelsch opened discussion of SB 2344. |'ve been thinking about putting this into

a subcommittee. Bev, | have a question for you. You visited with me last Friday about this

bill.  On you amendments you write “leave all current law” and then add this language, "this
. section does not apply to programs that are operated on school premises or that are approved

by the DP1 under the federal child nutrition guidelines.” Are you saying we should leave the

law as it is in the code or leave the bill as amended in the senate and add this language?

Bev Nielson: My understanding is that you leave the current law, not the bill, and then

indicate that you can serve anything on your property and you can serve programs that are

required to abide by those guidelines—that would be the day cares.

Chairman Kelsch: Would that include Head Start, the YMCAs, the YHWCAs and those

programs?

Nielson: Correct, and the non profits.

Representative Wall: They are covered under the old law?

Nielson: We weren't clear under the old law that we could serve any thing we wanted on our

own property. That's unclear. The two things we wanted were: 1.) clear permission to serve

. whatever you want on your own property and 2.) That schools could serve, if they were asked,
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these programs that are under government guidelines for food and nutrition.  The food service
programs at the school go under those guidelines.

Representative Hanson: Does that include your state institutions like the colleges.

Nielson: We were referring only to K-12 education—in that section. | don’t think colleges are
required to go by those federal guidelines for the food they serve. We're just concerned about
the elementary and secondary portion of the bill.

Representative Haas: Then we would leave the language the way it is in section 2 and leave
section 1 the way it is in the engrossed bill?

Chairman Kelsch: | think that even after this bill was passed last session this is an issue on
which the school districts wanted further clarification. | have concerns about this bill. | will
put it in a subcommittee just to make sure that we have it correct and assure that it has no
unintended consequences.

Representative Johnson: | think you have amendments there to make exemptions for
populations of 5,000. I'd like to see that as 7,500 to address Devil’s Lake.

Chairman Kelsch: Representative Wall, Representative D. Johnson, and Representative

Hanson will serve on the subcommittee.  Work with the hospitality assoctation and others.
School districts have some concerns. | want you to verify that Head Start will be comfortable
with the bill. There are too many nonprofits that are affected by something like this and we

want to make sure we don’t have any unintended consequences.
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Vice Chairman Meier opened discussion of SB 2344.

Representative Wall discussed the amendment he presented. Section 1, line 10 starting with
the word “that” to the end of the line is removed:; line 11 “the institution” has been removed;
number 2 is new language and says, ‘“limitations do not apply to an institution under the state
board of education if no private sector entity located in the same city is capable .. ." Under
Section 2, number 1.b is new language regarding child care centers. .. This specific
language is there for the protection of YMCAs and a host of other non profits. What was
number 3 is deleted. It should never have been there since it deals with higher education.

The stakeholders who gave testimony were involved in the drafting of this amendment. There
are no major changes. The bill as introduced was too restrictive and the Senate amended it.
Those amendments for the most part are stili in place. It allows for institutions of higher
education to serve the needs of staff students and alumni. | think the fiscal note was prepared
for the fiscal bill and wasn't changed. | find it hard to believe this would cause a loss of $400.0
to higher ed or to public schools. That's conjecture on my part.

Representative Hanson: What's the penalty of violation of any of this?

Representative Wall: I'm not aware that there is one.

Anita Thomas: There is no penalty; it is just a policy direction.
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Representative Hunskor: Are colleges who had a concern over this—are they okay with
this.

Representative Wall: We had no college officials at our subcommittee meetings. | don’t
believe we had any give testimony originally. We have not put in jeopardy their ability to serve
on campus students, off campus students, alumni, etc. Section 1, number 2, takes care of
that.

Vice Chairman Meier: \We'll stand at ease until the chairman comes back.

Chairman Kelsch returned and Representative Wall gave a quick summation of the
changes.

Representative Wall: | move the amendments.

Representative Johnson: |second.

Representative Hunskor: In MSU Bottineau’s case, could they host this on their campus. |
thought | heard you say they couldn't; if they were doing an activity in their dining hall?
Representative Wall: They could host it, but it depends on who they were hosting. Alumni,
basketball teams, etc., is it under the auspices of the college?

Chairman Kelsch: The activities they do, are they always under the auspices of the
institution?

Representative Hunskor: | would say that but if they are hosting another group of folks for
whatever reason, say a large group and there is no other facility in town that has the capacity
that still could be on the campus grounds. | don't think there is anything here to preclude that.
Representative Wall: Under Section 1, number 2, that covers it.

A voice vote was taken on the amendment (70832.0204). The amendment was
accepted.

Representative Haas: | move Do Pass as Amended.
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Representative Mueller: [ second.
A roll call vote was taken: Yes: 12, No: 1, Absent: 0

Representative Wall will carry the bill.
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Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the provision of food and catering services by institutions of higher education and
school districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy.

1.

o

o

An institution under the control of the state board of higher education may
gnter a contract to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food
services for persons or programs not affiliated with the institution and may
provide catering services for an event if the event is organized
predominantly for persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held
predominantly for persons enrglied in the institution, or the event is held
under the auspices of the institution, provided the institution first
establishes a policy regarding such eentrasts services and specifically
addressing addresses issues related to competition with private sector
entities.

The limitations provided under subsection 1 do not apply to an institution
under the control of the state beard of higher education if no private sector

entity located in the same city as the institution is capable and willing to
meet the facility or personnel requirements necessary to:

a. Prepare and provide the meals, snacks, or other food services for a
specific event; or

b. Provide the catering services for a specific event.

An mstltutlon under the control of the state board of higher education may

memuﬂen the ser\nces perm:tted under thls sectlon

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals.

1.

The board of a school district may prepare and provide meals, snacks. or
other food servigces for any events or programs occurring on or aff school

property, provided the events or programs:

Are hosted by or under the auspices of the school district; or

|

Involve child care centers participating in the Child and Aduit Care
Food Program [Pub. L. 108-265: 118 Stat, 729; 42 U.S.C.

1766 et seq.].

(s
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2. __a. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare and
provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs
Hekaﬁﬂﬁtedwﬁh—ﬂwe-seheel-msm other than those in subsection 1,
provided any person that wishes to enter a contract with the board
under this seetion subdivision first demonstrates to the satisfaction of
. the board that there are no private entities able and willing to enter
into such a contract.

2: b. The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public
its willingness to provide meals, snacks, or other food services fef

B&FS&HS—B-FBFOQ-F&HS—H-G{—&ﬁHﬂ%Gd—M%FHh&-diS%H&E under this section.

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2344, as engrossed: Education Committee (Rep. R. Kelsch, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
{12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed 3B 2344 was placed
on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the provision of food and catering services by institutions of higher education
and school districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy.

1. An institution under the control of the state board of higher education may
enter a contract to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food
services for persons or programs not affiliated with the institution and may
provide catering services for an event if the event is organized
predominantly for persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held
predominantly for persons enrolled in the institution, or the event is held
under the auspices of the institution, provided the institution first
establishes a policy regarding such eentrasts services and specifically
addressing addresses issues related to competition with private sector
entities.

N

The limitations provided under subsection 1 do not apply to an institution
under the control of the state board of higher education if no private sector
entity located in the same city as the institution is capable and willing to
meet the facility or personnel requirements necessary to:

a. Prepare and provide the meals, snacks, or other food services for a
specific event; or

b. Provide the catering services for a specific event.

3. Aninstitution under the control of the state board of higher education may
not advertlse to the general publnc |ts wﬂhngness to prowde meaJe—snaeks—

mst-rtuﬂen the services permltted under thns section.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals.
1. The board of a school district may prepare and provide meals, shacks, or

other food services for any events or programs occurring_on or off school
property, provided the events or programs:

a. Are hosted by or under the auspices of the school district; or

{2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-48 5364
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b. Involve child care centers participating in the Child and Adult Care
Food Program [Pub. L.108-265; 118 Stat. 729; 42 U.S.C.

1766 et seq.].

2. a. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare
and provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or
programs net-affiliated-with—the—sehooldistret other than those in
subsection 1, provided any person that wishes to enter a contract
with the board under this seetier subdivision first demonstrates to the
satisfaction of the board that there are no private entities able and
willing to enter into such a contract.

2. b, The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public
its willingness to provide meals, snacks, or other food services fer

pe;sens—er—pmgaams—net—aiﬂha{edﬂm{-h-t-he-d-lsma under this section.

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 2 HR-48-5364
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Senator Gary Lee opened the meeting of the conference committee on SB 2344. All members
were present.

Senator Gary Lee said this bill has traveled quite a distance. There has been a lot of work
done on it. He asked someone from the House to explain the House amendments.
Representative Wall said the House had concerns they tried to address with input from the
major stakeholders including non profit groups, the YMCA, day care providers, school board
association, North Dakota Restaurant and Lodging, Beverage Association. He reviewed the
changes in the .0300 engrossment. (meter 1:35)

Senator Bakke said she has passed out proposed amendment .0302 which was brought to her
by Senator O'Connell. There is a concern by the university in Bottineau where food service is
provided by a private entitiy. This business also caters to the public. The university fears this
business might pull out of their agreement with the university and they would be left without
food service. Bottineau is asking for the addition of number 4 to section 1, that is the only new
thing in the amendment, the rest is exactly like the House version. At Bottineau, the private

business pays the university for use of their facilities and equipment and the university pays
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. the business for providing meats. This is a cost savings rather than hiring staff to do food
service. They have met with the hospitality people and they have no problem with this.
Representative Wall asked if this is already covered in the bill as it is?
Senator Bakke said Bottineau thought this was necessary and asked for the provision.
Representative Wall asked if there is someone in Bottineau in the private sector that would
replace this contract service that would prepare on site off campus, is that the concern? He is
not seeing what is causing their concern.
Senator Bakke said Bottineau’s concern is they have this private entity that depends on being
able to cater not only at the University and for university functions but also out in the
community. They are probably one of the few that does it in the community. Their concern is
they don't want this group to see the law, think they aren't allowed to cater to the public and
. pull out of the university food service contract.
Senator Gary Lee asked out section 4 which is added bring clarity or do anything different that
what is already in subsections 1, 2 and 3. It seems like it does precisely the same thing.
Senator Bakke said in sections 1, 2 and 3 it says the university would have to go out and
contact all the caterers in Bottineau that would be capable of catering a wedding and get
something in writing that they would not be able to do it before their private contractor could do
a catering job. This amendment would not force them to jump through these hoops.
Senator Gary Lee said it seems like they are already able to contract, they can provide the
snacks, it seems like it is restating it.
Senator Bakke said this is just a request that was made to clarify it.
Senator Bakke moved amendment .0302, seconded by Representative Hanson.

. Representative Wall said he is slow to react because he is trying to understand the language

in number 4. It almost has a double meaning.
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Senator Gary Lee asked if it would help if the drafter of the language would answer questions.
Representative Wall said that would help greatly.

Anita Thomas, Legislative Council, appeared to answer question. She said section 4 adds
some clarity. Sections 1, 2 and 3 talked about what institutions can and cannot do. None of
that is changed in the amendment. Subsection 4 just says in a particular instance where you
have a private contractor providing services on campus, this bill does not impact what the
private contractor does. That private contractor is not an institution of higher education.
Representative Wall asked if number 4 could be construed as creating another problem, where
the private sector could say to a college, you have to open up your kitchens and your
dinnerware so we can use it?

Anita Thomas said that is getting into contractual issues. This bill doesn't address what kind of
contract exists between an institution of higher education and a private sector business.
Representative Wall said a contract would have to be signed.

Anita Thomas said correct. Whatever limitations would govern the institution in terms of
contracts would apply.

The motion passed 6 — 0.

Senator Gary Lee adjourned the meeting of the conference committee.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2344 L{'L{(‘Z
|e

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 909 and 910 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1030 and 1031 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2344 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the provision of food and catering services by institutions of higher education and
school districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows;

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy.

1. Aninstitution under the control of the state board of higher education may
enter a contract to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food
services for persons or programs not affiliated with the institution and may
provide catering services for an event if the event is organized
predominantly for persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held
predominantly for persons enrolled in the institution, or the event is held
under the auspices of the institution, provided the institution first
estabiishes a policy regarding such eentrasts services and specifically
addressing addresses issues related to competition with private sector

entities.

2. The limitations provided under subsection 1 do not apply to an institution
under the control of the state beard of higher education if no private sector
entity located in the same city as the institution is capable and willing to
meet the facility or personnel requirements necessary to:

a. Prepare and provide the meals, snacks, or other food services for a
specific event; or
b. Provide the catering services for a specific event,
3. Aninstitution under the control of the state board of higher education may

not advertrse to the general publlc ltS wallmgness to prowde mea&s—snaeks—

m&htuheﬁ the services permltted under this sectlon

4. Nothing in this section may be construed to limit the activities of a private
sector entity that provides meals, snacks, or other food services to an
institution of higher education under the provisions of a contract.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provislon of meals.

Page No. 1 70832.0302
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1. The board of a school district may prepare and provide meals, snacks, or

ather food services for any events or programs occurring on or off school
property, provided the events or programs:

Are hosted by or under the auspices of the school district; or

b. Involve child care centers participating in the Child and Adult Care
Food Program [Pub. L. 108-265; 118 Stat. 729;: 42 U.S.C.

1766 et seq.].

2. _a. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare and
provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs
net—a#ﬂta&ed—vwm—tha—seheeirﬁsm other than those in subsection 1,
provided any person that wishes to enter a contract with the board
under this seetion subdivision first demonstrates to the satisfaction of
the board that there are no private entities able and willing to enter
into such a contract.

i

2= b. The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public
its willingness to provide meals, snacks, or other food services for

perene-ef-pmgﬁams-net-aﬁﬂmedWHhe-drstHe& under this section.

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 70832.0302
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
SB 2344, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. G. Lee, Freborg, Bakke and
Reps. Wall, D. Johnson, Hanson) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the
House amendments on SJ pages 909-910, adopt amendments as follows, and place
SB 2344 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 908 and 910 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1030 and 1031 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill
No. 2344 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and
reenact sections 15-10-17.4 and 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the provision of food and catering services by institutions of higher education
and school districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA!:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15-10-17.4 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-10-17.4. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals - Policy.

1. Aninstitution under the control of the state board of higher education may
enter a contract to prepare and provide meals, snacks, or other food
services for persons or programs not affiliated with the institution and may
provide catering services_for an event if the event is organized
predominantly for persons affiliated with the institution, the event is held
predominantly for persons enrolled in the institution, or the event is held
under the auspices of the institution, provided the institution first
establishes a policy regarding such eentraets services and specifically
addressing addresses issues related to competition with private sector
entities.

P

The limitations provided under subsection 1 do not apply to an institution
under the control of the state board of higher education if no private sector

entity located in the same city as the institution is capable and willing to
meet the facility or personnel requirements necessary to:

a. Prepare and provide the meals, snacks, or other food services for a
specific event; or

b. Provide the catering services for a specific event.

o

An institution under the control of the state board of higher education may
not advertise to the general public its willingness to provide

E] ]
H T i - -l

institution the services permitted under this section.

4. Nothing in this section may be construed to limit the activities of a private
sector entity that provides meals, shacks, or other food services to an
institution of higher education under the provisions of a contract.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-35-08 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as fcllows:

15.1-35-08. Contract - Preparation and provision of meals.

(2) DESK, {2} COMM Page No. 1 SR-63-7300
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other food services for any events or programs ogcurring on or off school
property, provided the events or programs:

. 1.  The board of a school district may prepare and provide meals, snacks, or

Are hosted by or under the auspices of the school district; or

[

(=4

Involve child care centers participating in the Child and Adult Care
Food Program [Pub. L.108-265: 118 Stat.729; 42 U.5.C.

1766 et seq.].

2. a. The board of a school district may enter into a contract to prepare
and provide meals, snacks, or other foed services for persons or
programs ret—affiliated—with—the—sehool-district other than those in
subsection 1, provided any person that wishes to enter a contract
with the board under this seetien subdivision first demonstrates to the
satisfaction of the board that there are no private entities able and
willing to enter into such a contract.

2 b. The board of a school district may not advertise to the general public
its willingness to provide meals, snacks, or other food services fer

. Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2344 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

(2) DESK, {2) COMM Page No. 2 SR-63-7300
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January 30, 2007

SB 2344 ~ Preparation & Provision of meals at institutions of higher
education & school districts.

Chairman Freborg & members of the Senate Education Committee, for
the record I am District 22 Senator Gary A. Lee,

This bill comes at the request of some private business owners that
would like to ensure a level playing field when it comes to competing
for food catering & meal preparation business in their communities.

These businesses desire to be good community partners. But do feel
they are at an unfair advantage if required to compete with a
university or school district for this business.

Changes to these sections of code will more clearly spell out where
services can be provided by both entities.

Bill Walk Through:

Section 1 - more clearly delineates the accountabilities institutions of
higher education have in providing catering services. It essentially
allows colleges & universities to cater meals on their property, at
events organized primarily for or under the auspices of the institution.

Section 2 - intends to offer a more understandable description of what
a school district may offer in their communities. It addresses those
school districts in a city with greater than 5000 population**, It
wouldn’t allow them to provide meal services for persons or programs
not affiliated with the school districts.

Mr. Chairman, that is the bill. I would attempt to answer any
questions.

**By 2000 census cities >5000 population:

Bismarck, Grand Forks, Fargo, West Fargo, Devils Lake, Dickinson, Jamestown,
Mandan, Minot, Valley City, Wahpeton, Williston.
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Education Committee
North Dakota Senate
January 30, 2007

SB 2344 (Prohibit catering by NDUS and school districts)

Chairman Freborg and members of the Committee, my name is Nicki Weissman. 1 am the
lobbyist for the North Dakota Hospitality Association which has over 350 members in North
Dakota who are engaged in all aspects of the hospitality industry, including the restaurant and

food preparation business.

We are in support of SB 2344, which is designed to get publicly funded entities such as

institutions of higher education and local schools out of the private sector catering business where
the compete unfairly with private businesses, that help to fund the public institutions with whom
they are trying to compete.

Higher Education: The bill prohibits catering by institutions controlled by the Board of

Higher Education OFF campus unless:
a.) the event is organized predominantly for persons affiliated with the college, or

b.) the event is held for persons predominantly enrolled in the college, or

c.) the event is held under the auspices of the college.



If one of these exceptions applies, or the event is ON campus then the college may cater the
event. But the bill does seek to prevent a public funded entity such as a college that enjoys the
benefit of public funds, from entering into the catering market for general catering services that

are un-related to the college.

K-12 education: The bill also prohibits a school board in a community of more than 5,000 people
from preparing or providing meals, snacks or food services for persons not affiliated with the
school. This too, is designed to keep publicly funded institutions from unfairly competing in the

food preparation market with private sector businesses.

The reason for such a prohibition on Higher Education and local schools is that recently those
institutions have been entering the market, off campus for events unrelated to school or college
functions in direct competition with tax paying-private sector businesses. These businesses don’t
enjoy the same advantages, tax structure, utility savings, capital savings, labor structures and

similar advantages that schools and colieges have and that are paid for with public funds.

Schools and colleges are likely to oppose the bill saying that off campus activities and those
unrelated to school functions are necessary to provide training to students, or that publicly funded
programs such as “meals on wheels” are well served by the colleges, or that the bill prevents
organizations affiliated with the institution from having an event off campus. None of that is true.
Training can continue, but it must fit the structure of the bill. Programs like “meals on wheels”
can continue, but through other institutions---not a college. And organizations such a club or the
Foundation or the Athletic Boosters can indeed continue to have functions OFF campus. In short,
the bill is narrowly drawn, but is necessary to address this growing problem that faces North
Dakota’s business community and the well intended hands of some of our schools and colleges.

For these reasons we ask for a DO PASS recommendation of SB 2344.



Testimony on Senate Bill 2344

Chairman Freborg and Members of the Education Committee.

My Name is Dixie Schulz and I am Child Nutrition Director for Mandan
Public Schools.

During the 2003 Legislative session I worked closely with Representative
RaeAnn Kelsch on HB 1397. The language of that bill you can read through
the strike throughs of SB 2344. I am here today to voice my opposition to
SB 2344,

Mandan Schools would not be allowed to serve breakfast or lunch to
students who are attending tournaments, festivals, or competitions at our
schools. We would not be able to invite parents, grandparents, guests or
Adopt a Cop to join children for breakfast or lunch. Neither the Mayor nor
the chief of police, nor our architect could have lunch with our
Superintendent or administrators. This bill would also prohibit us from
providing food for concessions for sporting events, which we do at this time.

Mandan schools is our home and if we have visitors we like to invite them to
join us for a meal. We take great pride in our Child Nutrition Department
and the nutritious and healthy meal choices we offer each and every day, as
we work to overcome the obesity problem of youth. We would like to
continue to be able to do this, without restriction.

I find the language of this bill extremely restrictive. If the intent is for other
entities to provide meal service on school premises, USDA our federal
governing agency does not allow for competitive food to be sold during our
meal service times.

I am aware of school districts in the state who have Head Start and daycare
programs housed within their school buildings. This bill would force that
district to stop serving meals to these children in these programs even
though they are in their school district building. Because Child Nutrition
staff are trained in Safety and HACCP, their expertise, staff and facilities
assure that meals are prepared in safe and sanitary conditions. They are able
to assure that all meals are appealing and yet meet all local, state and federal
requirements.



I believe this is an issue that is best left up to the decision of the local school
board as the represent the wishes of the community in which they live and
serve. The school board is composed of individuals who because of their
diverse background bring a wealth of knowledge to the table. I am opposed
to any bill that takes the decision making process out of the local school
boards hands.

If you have questions please contact Dixie Schulz at 701-663-9531.
Thank you.



Testimony on Senate Bili 2344
Prepared by Mark Lemer, Business Manager and Jan Sliper, Food Service Director
West Fargo Public Schools

January 36, 2007

Senate Freborg and members of the Senate Education Committee, I would like to provide
testimony in opposition to Senate Bili 2344,

The purpose of this bill would be to limit the ability of school districts to prepare and
provide meals for entities that are not affiliated with the school district.

The language contained in this bill is extremely restrictive and does not offer any
flexibility for schools. While I understand the concept of not ha\..ring public schools competing
with for-profit catering businesses and restaurants, this bill has gone too far in its limitations.

The use of the word “affiliated” is of particular concern, since that word by definition
implies a relationship, connection or association between two or more entities. There will be
many instances in which we may come in conflict with the use of that word in this bill.

[ would like to provide you with some examples of how this bill will impact the West
Fargo School District. We currently have a HeadStart program and a YMCA daycare program
that operate within one of our school buildings. These programs allow children to move from
our half-day kindergarten or preschool special education programs into a setting for the balance
of their day. We currently offer food services to school children in that building, as well as the
children in the HeadStart and IYMCA daycare programs. Since neither of these programs is
directly affiliated with the school district, we would need to stop serving meals to the children in
these programs, even though they are in a school building.

Other examples of conflicts that will be created by the language in this bill include (1)

serving food at sporting events from a school concessions program, since individuals from the

Page 1



opposing school would not be affiliated with our school district; (2) serving food to the ND
Governor’s Commission on Education Improvement (including Senator Flakoll!) during its
meeting in West Fargo, since that Commission was not affiliated with the school district; (3)
providing meals to guests who are in attendance at a school board meeting when a meal wiI‘l be
served, including the press, architects, bond counsel, auditors, etc.

If this bill were to become law in its current form, the repercussions on schools would be
significant. At the very least, I would urge the adoption of an amendment that would allow
school districts the ability to prepare and provide meals for activities that are held on school
property.

I would encourage you to consider the implications of Senate Bill 2344 in its current
form. Unless changes are made to provide a greater degree of flexibility, I would urge you to
give this bill a “Do Not Pass” recommendation.

If you have any questions, please contact Mark Lemer at 701-499-1004 or Jan Sliper at

701-499-1837. Thank you.

Page 2
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Senate Bill 2344

Chairman Freborg, Members of the committee, my name is Prakash Mathew. |
am the Vice President for Student Affairs at North Dakota State University. This
morning | would like to speak in opposition of Senate Bill 2344.

The passage of Senate Bill 2344 will have a profound impact on institutions of
higher education in North Dakota, particularly the Dining Services at NDSU, with
a significant impact on the Fargo Senior Meals on Wheels program.

I would like to highlight some important points which will summarize our concerns

in this matter.

Dining Services is a completely self support department, and revenue from the
catering area is an essential component of the University budget. In addition to
keeping the contract dining (board dining) rate at a manageable level for
students, this revenue is used to manage expenses in the areas of deferred
maintenance, renovation projects, and debt services. A specific example of the
role that this income plays is the Legislature's approval of the Memorial Union
Expansion and Renovation project. This project was approved based on Dining
Services being one of several major funding sources. Without the revenue from
our catering department, the financial support to pay the debt service will be

jeopardized.

We have never gone out into the community to advertise or solicit business for
the Dining Services. Our unsolicited off-campus catering revenue during the past
year was approximately $50,000. Beyond serving meals for students, faculty and
staff, the majority of the business we conduct is in the Memorial Union, Alumni

Center and the Technology Park. At the Alumni Center, we are one of the seven
caterers to provide services to their patrons. The customer selects the caterer of



their choice. It is also important to note that Dining Services pays sales tax on all PR
events not affiliated with the institution. (

In addition, this bill would significantly impact the Fargo community by potentially
eliminating the contract with the Fargo Senior Commission to provide the Meals
on Wheels program. We have been providing this service for the past four
decades at a reasonable cost with quality and consistent daily service. The
program currently has difficulty finding a replacement for service on days that we

are closed.

The passage of this bill would result in a loss of approximately
$ 400,000 revenue annually. As a land grant institution, service to the

surrounding community and state are an important part of our mission.




Testimony
Senate Bill 2344 - Education Committee
January 30, 2007

Chairman Freborg and members of the Committee, my name is Brian Arett. { am the
Executive Director of Fargo Senior Commission, Inc. | am here to testify on Senate
Bill 2344. Fargo Senior Commission, Inc. is an agency that provides services to
senior citizens in a six county area in southeastern North Dakota. Services we
provide include Home Delivered Meals, Congregate Dining, Transportation, Health
Screening and Outreach Assistance. All of our services are designed to assist
senior citizens throughout the region in maintaining independence. In particular, we

focus our services on frail, low income and isolated seniors.

Good nutrition is central to our mission of service to the elderly. To assist with this
mission, we contract with fifteen restaurants throughout the region. In Fargo, we
contract with several private caterers and NDSU to provide meal service seven days
a week at seven locations. In addition, NDSU prepares the meals that we utilize for

our home delivered meals program.

The budget for our program in 2007 is $2.8 million. Revenues to support our
services come from a variety of sources including federal, state, county and city as
well as private donations. The private donations that we generate fund just over half

of our budget.

Section 1 of SB 2344 would prevent us from continuing to contract with NDSU for

meal services. Based on our experience with the restaurants we are already



working with, we believe that this will cause our costs to go up by $100, 000 a year.
Any increase in the cost of providing services will have a negative impact on our

ability to keep up with the growing demands of our aging population.

Because of this impact, | ask you to reject SB 2344 or amend it to allow non-profit
agencies like ours to continue to work with institutions of higher education and
school districts in serving the seniors of our state. It is important to note that our
contract for meal services in Fargo is bid out annually. In the 35 year history of our
program there have been only two competing bids. Both of them came from non

profit organizations based in Minnesota.

| appreciate the opportunity to address this legislation with your committee and

would be happy to respond to any questions you might have.



TESTIMONY ON SB 2344
Senate Education Committee
January 30, 2007
by Linda Glaser, Director Child Nutrition Programs
328.4565

DeBartment of Public Instruction

Good Moming Chairman Freborg and members of the Senate Education Committee. My
name is Linda Glaser, Director of Child Nutrition Programs for the Department of Public
Instruction (DPI). DPI administers the USDA child nutrition programs operating in
schools and child care centers. I am here today to speak in opposition of Senate Bill 2344.
I am concerned about the limitations this bill places on access to meals and snacks by
North Dakota students and parents.

Senate Bill 2344 prohibits institutions of higher education from providing meals or
snacks to programs or persons not affiliated with the institution. In addition, boards of
school districts in cities having a population over five thousand are prohibited from
providing meals or snacks to persons not affiliated with the school district.

This bill will curtail food service options for child care and head start centers. The centers
contract with schools because the school food service department must adhere to the
same USDA meal pattern and Child Nutrition labeling requirements as the child care
programs. School food service programs are efficient providers of meals to childcare and
head start centers because they have the same federal meal pattern requirements, and plan
menu choices that are accepted by preschool children.

Section 2 of this bill targets cities with populations of more than five thousand, which are
also the commumnities where the greatest number of chuldcare and head start centers are
located. Prohibiting school districts from being a potential food service vendor will limit
the food service options available and may lead to a center not offering food service to
children. It may also stop a potential center from establishing a childcare operation.
Equipping a child care operation with an acceptable kitchen is extremely expensive. To
keep the cost of childcare as low as possible, efficient contract meal arrangements are

often encouraged.

Further, a population of five thousand does not guarantee that there are private food
service vendors available and willing to provide meals to child care and head start
centers; however, in each community there 1s likely to be a school district. Using existing
school facilities is a wise use of tax dollars.



School food service personnel are highly qualified to prepare food for child care centers. .
School food service personnel are trained in the USDA meal pattern requirements and (-
understand food safety and sanitation requirements.

Schools must operate the food service program as a non-profit program. School districts
in communities with a population of five thousand or more also require the food service
program to be self-supporting without any contributions from the district’s general fund.
Schools do not receive federal funds for meals sold or provided to any persons or
programs beyond their own student meals. Schools do not enter into child care catering
contract agreements to make a profit, they do it because they can offer the service in the
most efficient, economical manner possible.

All food service entities, including school boards, should be allowed to participate in
providing meals to child care and head start programs. The department is opposed to any
language that prohibits any segment of the food service industry from offering meal
service options to child care and head start centers.

Chairman Freborg, this concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any
questions that the committee may have.

o
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February 12, 2007

Madame Chair & members of the House Education Committee, for the
record I am District 22 Senator Gary A. Lee.

Senate bill 2344 comes at the request of some private business
owners that would like to ensure a ievel playing field when it comes to
competing for food catering & meal preparation business in their
communities.

These businesses desire to be good community partners.

The original bill was felt to be overly restrictive & would have
prohibited schools & colleges from providing these services even if
there was no one else in the community willing or able to offer the
service,

This engrossed bill comes as a result of consensus; the various groups
coming together & looking at language that might work for each
group.

Section 1: Addresses what Higher Education can & can’t do. They can
provide services for person or programs not affiliated with the
institution. They can provide catering for events not held on property
owned by the institution if it is for persons enrolled or affiliated with
the institution or held under the auspices of the institution. They must
also have a policy that addresses competition with the private sector &
they can not advertise for services permitted under this section.

Section 2: Addresses those same issues, in essentially the same
fashion with school districts.

Madame Chair, that is the bill. I would attempt to answer any
questions.
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Education Committee
North Dakota House of Representative
February 12, 2007

SB 2344 (Prohibit catering by NDUS and school districts)

Chairwoman Kelsch and members of the Committee, for the record my name is Robert Harms.
[ am a lobbyist for the North Dakota Hospitality Association which has over 350 members in
North Dakota who are engaged in all aspects of the hospitality industry, including the restaurant

and food preparation business.

. We are in support of SB 2344 which is designed to get publicly funded entities such as
institutions of higher education and local schools out of the private sector catering business where
the compete unfairly with private businesses, that help to fund the public institutions with whom

they are trying to compete.

We have some amendments that [ will go over, but first I'd like to outline the current law:
Current law:

-Applies “on and off campus”

-Allows catering with others “not affiliated” with higher education, provided a policy is in place

-Prohibits advertising of catering services by higher education.

Engrossed SB 2344

-Applies “on and off campus”

. -Allows catering on property not owned by the institution, but oaly if:




-event is predominantly for persons affiliated with institution

-event is predominantly for persons enrolled in the institution

-or event is held under the auspices of the institution, and

-institution establishes a policy regarding services and competition with private sector.

(The same limitations apply to school boards in communities of more than 5,000 residents)

Higher Education: The bill prohibits catering by institutions controtled by the Board of
Higher Education OFF campus uniess:
a.) the event is organized predominantly for persons affiliated with the coliege, or
b.) the event is held for persons predominantly enrolled in the college, or

¢.) the event is held under the auspices of the college.

If one of these exceptions applies, or the event is ON campus then the college may cater the
event. But the bill does seek to prevent a public funded entity such as a college that enjoys the
benefit of public funds, from entering into the catering market for general catering services that

are un-related to the college.

K-12 education; The bill also prohibits a school board in a community of more than 5,000 people
from preparing or providing meals, snacks or food services for an event held on property not
owned by the school, unless one of those exceptions apply (affiliated with, enrolled in, or under
auspices of the school). This too, is designed to keep publicly funded institutions from unfairly

competing in the food preparation market with private sector businesses.

Amendment to SECTION 2: We would like to suggest an amendment to Section 2 that would

require any school in a community of 5,000 persons or less, that wishes to cater to persons or



programs not affiliated with the school be required to first establish to the board that no private

entity is willing or able to provide the service (which is provided in current law).

The reason for such a prohibition on Higher Education and local schools is that recently those
institutions have been entering the market, off campus for events unrelated to school or college
functions in direct competition with tax paying-private sector businesses. These businesses don’t
enjoy the same advantages, tax structure, utility savings, capital savings, labor structures and

similar advantages that schools and colleges have and that are paid for with public funds.

Under this structurc; of the bill, training provided by college campuses can continue. Likewise,
our intent would be to allow programs like “meals on wheels” can continue. And organizations
such a club or the Foundation or the Athletic Boosters can indeed continue to have functions OFF
campus. In short, the bill is narrowly drawn, but is necessary to address this growing problem

that faces North Dakota’s business community and the well intended hands of some of our
schools and colleges. For these reasons we ask for a DO PASS recommendation of Engrossed

SB 2344 (with the proposed amendment).




Sixtieth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Proposed amendment to Engrossed SB 2344

@t page 2, line 14: ™

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 15.1-35 of the North Dakota Century

Code is created and enacted as follows:

Meals-Snacks-Food services-Preparation-Provision The board of a school
district headquartered in a city having a population of five thousand or less may not
prepare or provide meals, snacks, or other food services for persons or programs not
affiliated with the school district without first demonstrating to the satisfaction of the

board that there are no private entities able and willing to provide such services.
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Testimony of Janna Stoskopf
Dean of Student Life
North Dakota State University
House Education Committee
RaeAnn G. Kelsch, Chair
SB 2344

Chairwoman Kelsch, Vice Chair Meier, members of the committee, my name is Janna
Stoskopf and I am the Dean of Student Life at North Dakota State University. Attending
with me 1s Jack Donahue, Director of Dining Services at NDSU. Thank you for
providing us the opportunity to speak in support of Senate Bill 2344,

North Dakota State University understands the concerns that have been expressed
regarding competition with private sector entities. We want to assure you that it is not
our practice to go out into the community to advertise or solicit business for Dining
Services. The majority of the business we conduct is in the Memorial Union, Alumni
Center and the Technology Park. I would also note that Dining Services pays sales tax on

all events not affiliated with the institution.

We feel strongly about the need for NDSU to continue serving the Fargo Senior
Commission through the Meals on Wheels program, a partnership that provides

consistent daily service at a reasonable cost.

It is our goal as a University to fulfill our mission as a land grant institution, and to do our
part as good citizens and good stewards for the State of North Dakota. We thank you for

your help and support on SB 2344,
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Testimony
SB 2344 — House Education Committee
February 12, 2007

Chairman Kelsch and members of the Committee, my name is Brian Arett. 1 am the
Executive Director of Fargo Senior Commission, Inc. | am here to testify on Senate
Bill 2344. Fargo Senior Commission, Inc. is an agency that provides services to
senior citizens in a six county area in southeastern North Dakota. Services we
provide include Home Delivered Meals, Congregate Dining, Transportation, Health
Screening and Outreach Assistance. All of our services are designed to assist
senior citizens throughout the region in maintaining independence. In particular, we

focus our services on frail, low income and isolated seniors.

Good nutrition is central to our mission of service to the elderly. To assist with this
mission, we contract with fifteen restaurants throughout the region. In Fargo, we
contract with several private caterers and NDSU to provide meal service six days a
week at seven locations. In addition, NDSU prepares the meals that we utilize for

our home delivered meals program.

The budget for our program in 2007 is $2.8 million. Revenues to support our
services come from a variety of sources including federal, state, county and city as
well as private donations. The private donations that we generate fund just over half

of our budget.
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Section 1 of SB 2344 as originally introduced would have prevented us from
continuing to contract with NDSU for meal services. This version was amended by
the Senate Education Committee. As amended, lines 7-9 of the bill will allow us to
continue to contract with NDSU for the provision of food services. Based on our
experience with the restaurants we are already working with, we believe we are able
to reduce our expenses by $100,000 a year through this contract. This reduction

helps us to continue to keep up with the growing demands of our aging population.

Because of the changes incorporated into this bill by the Senate Education
Committee, | ask you to support SB 2344 which allows non-profit agencies like ours
to continue to work with institutions of higher education in serving the seniors of our
state. It is important to note that our contract for meal services in Fargo is bid out
annually. In the 35 year history of our program there have been only two competing

bids. Both of them came from non profit organizations based in Minnesota.

| appreciate the opportunity to address this legislation with your committee and

would be happy to respond to any questions you might have.
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Good morning Chairperson Kelsch and House Education members. My name is
JoAnn Brager and | am the Director of West River Head Start with centers in Beulah,
Hazen, Hebron, New Salem, Mandan, Carson and Eigin. We provide exceptional services
in a holistic environment to families who meet 100% federal poverty guidelines. (Family of
four makes less than or equal to $20,000 per year.)
Here's what we know about appropriate nutrition:
v Good eating habits are established early in life.
v" Appropriate nutrition is directly related to cognitive (intellectual) development. The brain
must have appropriate nutrition in order to develop.
v" Good nutrition is directly related to good oral health: strong bones = strong teeth; low
sugar diet = fewer cavities; etc.
v" Appropriate nutrition is directly related to healthy children (lower childhood diabetes,
lower obesity, lower heart disease, etc.)
v Comfort foods are established early in life as the brain is “wired” to determine what each
individual's comfort food will be and this follows a person their entire life.

SB 2344 restricts the local public schools from providing nutritionally appropriate meals
for Head Start children. Five of our seven centers are physically located within the public
schools. Six of our seven centers contract with the public schools as they have been the
only meal provider to bid for meal provision.

What we know about appropriate nutrition is too important and has too much of a
long-term impact on children {especially those in poverty) to restrict our ability to provide
the best meals at the best value to our most needy children.

Thank you. | would be happy to answer any questions.
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Dear Mr. Haas;

Thank you for your attention to HB 1320 and prekindergarten. Yes, times certainly have changed
from when I first entered education. Unfortunately, our children arc the ones who suffer most
from these socictal changes.

I am emailing to discuss HB2344 regarding catering by school districts and institutions of higher
education. I am wondering how this bill may affect the provision of meals to Head Start
programs that already are located in the public school settings. For example, Community Action
Head Start has a Head Start program located in the Mott Regent Public School in Regent. The
school provides the breakfast and lunch for the Head Start children enrolled. Some of the
preschoo! children enrolled in the Head Start classroom also have disabilities that require special
education services. Through a partnership with the local school districts, Head Start provides
those preschool children with a high quality early childhood education within the Head Start
classroom where they also reccive special education services. In this classroom the children with
disabilities are integrated with Head Start children and all are enrolled in Head Start.

We also provide a preschool Head Start cxperience for our rural families who drive to Belfield
and Beach twice a month. These families and-their preschool children eat lunch in the local
public school cafeteria. Each year, Community Action Head Start enters into a contract with the
superintendent of each of the three school districts to provide lunch for these children and their
families. These children will enter the kindergartens of the schools where they presently arc
eating lunch while they are enrolled in Head Start.

Would SB 2344 prevent the local school district from providing those meals for our Head Start
children and families? We receive USDA reimbursement for each child meal received. That
reimbursement is § 2.40 per meal for lunch and $1.31 for breakfast. In Regent, Beach and
Belfield, Community Action Head Start would be forced to enter into contracts with private
restaurants. I do not know of many restaurants where a nutritional meal that meats the
requirements of the Food and Nutrition Program could be purchased for $2.40.

Head Start serves families who live in poverty. Does this bill target those families who have the
least access to nutritious meals? We marvel at how much food our Head Start children consume
when they come to Head Start. We regularly refer our families to the Food Pantry when they
have exhausted their food for the month and are left waiting for the next payday.

I implore that you read Section 2 of HB 2344 and determine its effect on the Head Start
programs in North Dakota who are already struggling to meet the growing needs of the children
and families we serve.

I would greatly appreciate your response.

Thank you so much and I am so very gratified that you are representing our children and families
in Bismarck.

Sincerely,
Sharon A. Hansen
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Good morning, Chairperson Kelsch and House Education members. My
name is Cherie Johnson and | am a Family Support Coordinator for the Carson
Head Start Center. We have 17 children enrolled in the Carson Center. We
provide Head Start services Monday thru Thursday, 8:00- 3:15 pm MT We serve
the children breakfast, lunch, and a snack, in accordance with federal Head Start
Program Performance Standards.

in Carson, there are 5 potential meal providers: the bar, gas station,
Cowboy Country Café, Roosevelt Public School and Grant County Meals on
Wheels.

The bar and gas station would not be able to provide the variety and
nutritionally appropriate meals for 3 and 4 year old children. Meals-on-Wheels
was contacted and they don't have the staffing or capacity to make 38 additional
meals each day (19 breakfast and 19 lunches.)The Cowboy Country Café has
also not been interested in providing meals due to staffing. They have 1 cook and
1 server and sometimes the have just 1 person who does double duty as the
cook and server.

So, that leaves the Public School. Their meals are nutritious and meet the
CACFP meal requirements. Our classroom is located within the public school. It

makes sense that the public school be allowed to be our meal provider.

Thank you. | would be happy to answer any questions.

7
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February 12, 2007

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE
SB 2344

REPRESENTATIVE KELSCH AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

My name is Caitlin McDonald. | am appearing today on behalf of The YMCAs of North
Dakota. We neither support nor oppose SB 2344, but have some concerns about how it
will be interpreted and how it will affect some of our YMCA programs.

We would like to work with any subcommittee you might appoint to consider this bill.

The Jamestown Public School District currently provides meals for the YMCA daycare
program during the school year. This program serves some of the public school children
as well as others. The federal guidelines for daycare meals are identical as those for
schools, so it is very easy for the school district to simply make a few more meals for us
under the same guidelines.

The Jamestown YMCA may be covered under this bill as a person affiliated with the
school since it does provide some services for some of the district’s kindergarten age
children, or it may be covered under a policy developed by the school. But, we're not
sure at this stage.

At present, this is a case where a nonprofit provides services for another nonprofit. It's
working well for all concerned. Other food service providers simply cannot provide the
type of meals we require at the prices we can afford. The Jamestown daycare operation
is very dependent on this food service from the Jamestown School District.

We respectfully request SB 2344 allow programs such as the Jamestown YMCA
daycare to still use the Jamestown school district food service.

If you have any questions, | will be happy to try to answer them. THANK YOU FOR
YOUR TIME AND CONSIDERAT!ON.

SB 434y



B
TESTIMONY ON HB 2344
House Education Committee
February 12, 2007
By Dean Kinnoin, Child and Adult Care Food Program Manager
328.3237

DeEartment of Public Instruction

Good Morning Chairperson Kelsch and members of the House Education
Committee. My name is Dean Kinnein, Manager of the Child and Adult Care Food
Program for the Department of Public Instruction. I am here today to provide
opposing testimony regarding House Bill 2344 — HB2344.

House Bill 2344 will curtail food service options for child care and head start
centers. The centers contract with schools because the school food service
department must adhere to the same USDA meal pattern and Child Nutrition
labeling requirements as the child care programs. School food service programs
are efficient providers of meals to child care and head start centers because they
fall under the same federal regulation requirements.

Using existing school facilities is a wise use of tax dollars. Many of the centers
and head starts are located in communities and areas where there are no other
venders available to provide the service. In larger communities, school facilities
often can provide the meals to the centers and head starts at the lowest cost.

The Child and Adult Care Food Program is a supplemental reimbursement
program and does not fully fund food services for participating agencies. Centers
can be either non-profit or for-profit, and a many serve lower income children.
Many of these centers have limited resources and the school food service option is
the best option.

If the school food service option is eliminated, many centers and head starts that do
not have acceptable facilities to prepare their own meals, have no other food
service options, or options that are not financially feasible, will not be able to
continue to participate in the Child and Adult Care Food Program.

Chairperson Kelsch, this concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any
questions that the committee may have.
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Jan 1 2006 -June 30, 2008

Group - Name - Function Evant
Academic Afairs’ Agricutiire Ambassadors
Academic Affairs Professiona) Develoganent
Academic Affairs Departinent Chairs
" Acudenric Affairs Career Pairs
Academic Affairs Meeting
Academic Affirs Meeting
Academic Afnirs Parent Orientation
Academic AfTairs Meeting
Agricutiire Department Meeting
Agriculiine Department Farm Management Mig
Frank Schander
Agricuitre Departinent Retirement
Altied Healih OTA Mceeting
Afiied Health OTA Mecting
Allicd Health - OTA Gradueation
Dreams Auctions
Al Mezlings ,
Dreams Anctions
Alnmai Meetings
Drcans Auctions
Alumni Mectinys
Dreams Augtions
Almni Meetings
: _ Dreamsg Auctiong
Alumni Weetings
Alummi Meeting
Alurani Meetivig
Archiiectural Drafting Search Commiittee
Aschitectiral Dralling Rogor Ienson Retirement
Architectural Dralling Meeting
Ans, Science & Busincss Mecting
. Arts, Science & Business Mesting

Page 1 of8

Date No. of Contact Name
112 & 1719206 22 John Richman
272 & M10/06 103 John Richman
317 & 3f23/06 B John Richman
Jan. Feb, & March 06 85 John Richman
April & May 06 12 John Richman
‘524 & 5/30/06 12 John Richman
June 05 204 John Richman
5/11 & 6126405 8 John Richman
318/2006 3 Brad Tews
371572006 53 Kcith Torgerson
4125 & 5/2/06 95 Brad Tews
T200 21 Part Wells
57842006 20 Patti Wells
/1172006 25 Patti Wells
Tan. 06 15 Woody Caspers
Feb. 06 15 Woody Caspezs
March & Aprif 06 15 Woody Caspers
3/31/06 12 Waoody Caspers
i 13/u6 5 Woody Caspers
6/20 7 6/21/06 2 Woudy Caspers
6/2RA)6 12 Woody Caspers
Apnil 06 9 Randy Stach
51112006 50 Raudy Stach
5022 - 5724006 . 10 Randy Stach
April & May 06 10 Ken Kompelien
5/ & 5/18/06 7 Kent Kompelien
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Athietics
Athkctics
ALRiGIRS
Athlefice
Athietics
Athlctics
Amo Body
-Ase Body
Auto Body
Aute Body

Bookstare
Bookstore
Bookstore
Bookstore
Boy's Saale
Business Dffice
Business Office
Business Cffice
Business Office
Busipess Office
CAB

CAB

CAB

CAB

CAB

“Campus Polics
Carapus Police
Cathackers
Cathackers

Ciwvil Technoiogy
Civii Technotogy
Civil Technology

Bobcat

Browr Bag Seminar
. Brown Bag Seminat
Brown Bag Seminar

Recruits

Sack Lunches -
Kecruils

Hospitality Room
Reécrits

Girls Baskeiball Camp
Mecting

Advisory Committes
Mocting

Auto Body Club
Spring Semcster Opening
Week Foods

Tool Bid Luncheons
Meeting

Mecting

Mecting

Mecting

Fee Payment
Mecting

Meeting

Mecting

Swectheant Reception
Campus Activities
Campus Activities
Campus Activitics
Campas Activilies
Niceling

Meeting

Meeting

Meating

Career Fair
Meeting
Graiduation

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

fan 06
Yan, Peb. & March 06
March & april 06
Feb. U5
May 06
6715 - 6/22/06
22006
31211006
4125/2006
S/R2006

T, 110, & 1/26/06

3/3 - 3710406
47262006
31222006

6/10 - 6116/06

lan. 04
1724 - 1726706
Jan_ & Feb. 05
March & April 06

April, May, & fune 06

213 & 16706
Feb. & March 06
March 06
4/6 & 410796
April & May 06
- K17 & 1/3Gi0s
April & May 06
Ian. Feh & March 86
Feb. & March 06
© V1872006
/1072006
57122006
123 - 1726506
372372006
35972006
10720106
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30 Mike Beagle
30 Mike Beagde
20 Mike Beagle
56 Mike Eepgle
& Mike Beagle
177 Max Reinke
5 Tim Johnson
25 Jim Johnson
3 jim Johnson

" 40 Jisn Exdahi

20 Sye Braun

2§ Sue Braun

12 Suz Braun

20 Sue Braun
250 Mike Johnson

12 Mike Renk

18 Mike Renk

12 Mike Renk

12 Mike Renk

12 Mike Renk
-335 Shisiey Fox
100 Shirley Fox

20 Shirley Fux
Tt Shirley Fox

25 Shirley Fox

35 Seeve Schmrtz

2 Steve Schmiiz

35 Mike Renk

35 Mike Beagie

52 Randy Stach

15 Randy Siach

40 Randy Stach

14 Donna Meyer

25 Carol Meehan

20 Carol Machan

20 Carol Meehan

Through Coliege Outreach
Through Caflege Outreach
Through College Outreach
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College Cutreach
Computcr Center

W S

Customer Scrvice Training
Customes Service Training
Customer Service Traimning
Customer Service Training
- Customired Trainimyg

Gift Certificates

MDU

Minn-Dak

Red River Grain

RRV Western Bailrcad
Twin Town Leadership
Twin Town Leadership
Twin Town Leadership
Uiility Conference

Wahpeton Chamber of Commerce

Cultural Biversity
Belta Kapps Gamma

Dental

BPenial
Dental
Dentai
“Dental
Gepartment Chairs
Department Chairg
Departnzent Cliaics
Depariment Chairs
- Depariment Chairs
Driesel
Dicsel
Diagel
Dhiesel

Mesting
Mecting
Meeling
Training
Trafiung
Training
Training
Training
Gift Certificaies
Mzetng
Medting
Meeting
Mreting
Meeting
Mecting
Meeting
Cealtrence
Mesfing
Meeting
Meeting
Meeting
Meetng
Meeting
Mechng
resting

- Graduation -

Meeting
Meeting
Meating
Meeting
hiezting
‘Thicic Big Cat Day
Meeting
ID Advisory Board
teeting

51572006
116406
W 190G
5152006
1119 & L25/06
10718 & 10721106
Jan. & Feb. 06
/312006
371572006
5746 & 5417706
6/13 & 6415/06
W06
152006
Vi2, 117, & V206
377, 34 & 3721006
Yan & Feb. 06
3714 - 316/06
April 06
202006
22812006

YE2006

13172006
3/24 & 3128506
59 & 5710506
A7 & /1905
CSIN006-
1710 & L2870
21 & M15/06
312006
4/5 & 4/18/06
57312006
213 & 217000
I3 & A6
37612006
427 & 519006
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6 Carol Mechan

8 Carol Mechan
29 Camol Mechan
20 Carol Mechan
15 Caml Mechan
40 Carol Meehan
15 Carol Meshan
15 Dale Knutson

2 Donrz Meyes
20 Donna Meyer
75 Carol Meehan
75 Donna Meyer
1} Donna Meyer
15 Caro! Mechan
20 Carcl Meehan
20 Carol Mechan
50 Donna Meyer

45 Donna Meyer

200 Betly Veland

13 Judy Peterson
Kathy

75 Bodensteiner
Kathy

33 Bodensteiney

34 Spe Swaison

24 Sue Swanson

20 Sue Swanson

* 238 Sue Swansin

35 Wandz Mauch
35 Wanda Manch
35 Wanda Mauch
35 Wandz Mauch
35 Wanda Mauch
50 Jenny Schmir

4 Jenny Schrnift
24 Jenny Schmitt
40 Jensry Schamift

Throvgh Coilege Outreach
Throuzh College Cutreach
Through Cellege Ouireach
Yhrough College Cumrcach
Through College Ouireach
Through College Ouireach

_ Through College Ouaireach

Through College Ontreach
Through College Outreach
Through Coliege Outreach
Thioegh College Outreach
Through College Culreach
Through College Cutreach
Though Coflege Outreach
Through College Cutreach
Through Coflege Cutreach
Through College Cutreach
Through College Onreach
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Diesal

Dhstance Educaticn
LIssre cAuciom
Distance Education
Distance Education
Distance Educalion
Distance Education
Dy, Haet -

Dr, Han

Dr. Han

Electrical

Eleciricat

Electrical

Electrical

Electrical

Enroliment Services
Enroliment Services
Enroilment Services

Enrollment Scrvices

Enrollment Services
Errollment Services

Ernrollment Services
" Golden Kiwunis
- Golden Kiwanis
Golden Kiwanis
~ Golden Kiwamis
Golden Kiwanis
Golden Kiwanig
Housing
Housing
Housing
Housing

Meeling

Meeting

Mecting

Meeting

Mccting
Meeting

Mceting
Personal Charges
Personal Charges
Personaf Charges
Meeting
Mezsting

Mesting
Meoting
Mleeting

" Lunch Coupots &

Mecting

Ag. Caxeer Night
Auto - Diesel Day
Lvnch Conpons &
Meeting

Lunch Coupons &
Meeting
Graduzation
Luech Coupons &
Meeting

Mecling

-~ Meeting -

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

Super Bowd
Meeting

RA Traiping
Picnic & Mceting

G6/12/2006
20 & 1/24i06
Fecb. 06
3242006
37372006
/28 & 514506
316 & 5/30/06
Jan & Feb 06

Mard, Aprif, & May 06

June 06
/13 & 1/20/06
Feb. 06

Murch & Apri) 06

574 & 5/12106
6/1£2006

Jan. 06
24312006
2172006

E¢b. & March 05

Anril & May 06
5/12{2006

Jane G6
25/ 2006
222006 - -

ey
3520701

2672006
572472006
6/28/2006
2572006

l« 2/16/2006
19 & 4720806
428 & 3/3/06

Page 4 of B

6 Ienoy Schmin
11 Margaret Wall
12 Margaret Wall
12 Margarct Walj
10 Margarat Wall
10 Margarct Wall
11 Margaret Wall

Dr. Hert
Dr, Hast
Dr, Hart

7 Ivan Maas
30 Ivan Maas

% Ivan Maas

9 Ivan Maas
12 lvan Maas

35 Karen Reilly
30 Karen Reilly
156 Karen Reilly
113 Karen Reilly

107 karen Reilly
Karen Reilly

31 Karen Reilly
23 David Toio

T2 DavidTole

33 David Tolo
28 David Tolo
22 David Tolo
21 David Tclo
30 Mike Johmson
I3 Mike Johnson
1) Mike Johnson
120 Mike Johnsen
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Humar, Resoutees

Hurnan Resources
Hitman Resources

Humaun Respurces

Human Resources
Human Ressurces
Information Technology
Eaformation Tecknology
lnstirational Advancement
Instinational Advaacemen
Instructional Resourcas
Instructiaeal Resourcey
Insirvctional Resnaurces
Instructional Resouraes
Jobn Deere Pro-Tech
John Peere Mianeapolis
Johr Deere Pro-Tech
John Deere Minocapotis
John Decre Pro-Tech
John Deer; RDO Breckenridge
Sohn Deere Pro-Tech
John Deerg Graduation

~ john Deera Pro-Tech
Jolin Dexre Mirneapolis
Jobn Deere Minneagolis
John Deere Minnespolis
Library
Library - -
Marketing & Comrounicalios
Marketing & Commuanicaiions
Academic Services
Academic Services

Assessrocnt & Institutional Research

Supervisor Teaining &

Mectling

New LupoYee
Osizpdaion
Meatinig

Gift Centificates &
Meeting

Emploves Recognitioh

Banquer
Ifeeting
Meztirg
Gernadiy Panty
Maeting
Weeting
Meeting
Meeting

* Mecting

Boot Camp
Meceting
Meeling
Mceting
Meeting
Meeting
Meeting
Meeting
Graduation
Meeting
Meocting
Mecting
hieefing
Mecting
Moeeting
decting
Meeting
Meeting
Wiegting
Meetiug

Jan & Feb 06

2 & 22106
Maach 06

331 & ¥5/00

412142006
April & May 05
Hiloee
53006
March & April 06
SILA3006
113172006
22477006
51212006
5722, 524 & 5426106
10 - 113 & 1117 - 1120006
131 - 2306
Feb. 06
37 - 3/10/06
3/14 - 31746
3/29/2006
4/235 - 4/2R/06
571272006
613 « L1666
6/13 - 6/15/06
£200 - 6722406
62272006
27192006
March & Apnil 06
172702006
511 & 5706
42042066
47,4721 & 51506
6/15/2005
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11 Peg Torrance

11 Peg Tormance
27 P Torrance

7 Peg Torrance

150 Peg Tormance
36 Peg Torrance
3 Steve Ockland
50 Steve Oukland
12 Harvey Link
+& Harvey Link
¥ Steve Krohn
1! Stvve Krohn
11 Steve Krohn
20 Sieve Krohn
10 Doana Meyer
14 Donra Meyer
‘16 Doana Mever
20 Doona Meyer
12 Donna Meyer
73 Donna Meyer
i2 Donna Mevyer
[73 Jenny Sclunitt
16 ronna Meyer
17 Dopna Meyer
14 Donna Meyor
14 Douna Mevar
15 Karen Chobot
20 Karen Chobot
4 Bab Otterson
24 Bob Onterson
24 Priscills Frank
34 Priscifls Frank

2 Gloria Dohman

Thromgh College Cuireach
Thrvugh College Outreach
Through College Outreach
Through College Outreach
Through Colege Qutreack
Through College Outreach
Through Collcee Outreach

Through Collcge Omireach
Throngh College Oulreach
Through College Ouireach
Thaough College Ontreach
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Antomotive Technology
Automotive Technology
Snluiaiiies @iy
Building Construction
Busiuesy Administration
Business Admisistration
Culinary Aris

BDrama Depasiment
English Departreent

Health Information Techaology

Marmiachiring Technology
Manefacturing Techaology
Math & Science Depariment
Mechxnical Systems
Mental Health

HNDSCS Awards
Recreational Engines
Refrigoration & AC

Service & Support Staff
Servics & Support Staff
Skilis & Technology Cenier
Skills & Techrology Ceuler
Smdent Health

Siuent Sexvices

‘Welding Depariment
Welding Departiment
““Music Depariment

fviusic Festival

hucic Festival
husiz Fesiival

Nursing

Nugsiag

Mecting

Meeiing

Fenry LoOCK Kenremen
Meeling

Advisory Committee
Advisary Commitice
Advisory Meeling
Play

Mreting

Meeting

Meeting

COpexn House
Meeting

Meeting

Mecling

Banquet

Mecting

Mesting

Mecting,

Meeting

Mecling

Mesting

hleeting

Meeting

AWS Welding Contest
Moeting '
Congest

Music Fest

Music Fest
Music Fest

Meeting

Meacting

306
372372006
31532006
1210056
341042006

- S/F L2006
3132006
346 - 306
32%2006

4/ 72086
111172006
/72006
311272006
LG
32472056
H262006
4192006
/381206
5/3/2004
67712006
/182006
&30/ 2006

16 & /10406
31742006
3/232008
51072006

4+l & diddin

172002006

3/10/2006
132006

/19 & 111706

172772006

Page & of 8

I4 Harlan Amzson
8 Horlaa Aracson
30 Hartan Amneson
{4 Jeff Berg
9 Duane Pedorson
9 Duane Pedersen
13 Mary Uhrer
3} Dean Foley
20 Wade King
12 Goralym Matejcek
5 Steve Johnson
74 Steve Johnson
8 Mike Burke
¢ joud Krause
15 Patti Wells
100 Mike Johason
T Mich =abe
23 Jocl Krause
1} Tom Hickrran
- 10 Tom Hickman
23 Deb Herman
10 Deb Heoman
30 Miram Skitbred
3 Georgia Pullen
72 John Cox
30 Joel Johuson
300 Lauric Lekang

{1 Boxe Scawswacker

& Bruce Schumacker
14 Sandy Mzhier
Kathy
26 Bodensteiver
Kathy
9 Bodensteiner

He *hT FrafeT rT T

| F Ny

I

L6



Nutsing

Nursing

Muwsing

Nursing

Nursing

Rlom Wedding
Carmpil

City of Wahpeton
Craig Irwin

Deb Kubela
Frontier Precision
Gideons

Gideous

Harvey Medenwaldi
Mike Beagle
Mike Renk
Migs ND Puageant
ND Recorder AssoCiztion
NDSU Distance & Cont. Ed.
Nosth Dakofa Fircfighiers
Phi Theta Kappa
Richland County Soil Conservation
St. Francis
~-Stride for Lifz
Three Rivers Ciists Cenfer
Twin Town Antists
Twin Town Astists
VICA
Wahpetoi Chamber of Commerce
. Wakpeton Hagles
Waklpeton Huskies Footbalt
Wahpeton Huskies Wrestling
Walipeton Park Board
Waoodcarvers

Mgoiing

i
Meaﬁug
Meesing

Mecti £
Pinnihg & Graduation
Wedding Receplion

Maeti
Mreetpz

Persofial Charges
Showst
Meeting
Meeting
Megting

HT2(6

2715 & 2022)06
April 06
519 & 512706
3/5 - §/10/06
/1072006
3/16/2006
6720/200%
2{24/2006
342006
37 - 3956
11212006
41872006

33172006
June 06
54242006
3252006
6/16-- 6/18/06
Feb. & March %
o/ 172006
4725/2006
21612006
492006
L3006
6/8120406
1232006
521372008
4442006
3242006
211772006
22006
1212006
117006
B/23 - 6725006

Page 7 ¢f 8

Katly
9 Bodensteiter
Kathy
20 Bodensteincr
27 Barh Diederick
150 Barb Diedorick
175 Barb Diederick
150 Jessie Blom
20 Kathy Miller
17 Tracy Burchill
3 Craig Irwin
56 Db Kubela
12 Nathap
16 Mike Beesop
55 Mike Beeson
Harvey
350 Medenwaldt
Mike Beagic
aike Renk
250 Kim Althoff
74 Ruth Quam
15 Lisa McNamma
21 Mary Kay
40 Shamon Dudlea
60 Becky
100 Mary Jacklitch
3 Patty Willemsen
52 Sue Rittenowr
taa fudish
6 Jan Judish
478 Harlan Acnescn
475 Doris Degenstein
Clarence Schotz
80 Mike McCall
122 Lisa Lebman
100 Wayne Beyer
189 Ruchen Brownlee
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Dilice Adinunistration
Office Admiistasion

Phusicr] tRae

Physizai Plane
Physicai Plant
Physicat Plant
Presidenis Offices
Presidents Offices
Presideuls {éRees
Presidents Offices
Presidenss Offices
Speech Festival
Stident Senate
Siadent Senate

Teachers Conter
Teachers Conter

Teachers Center

Technology & Services
Technology & Services
Technology & Services
Technolozy & Senvices

Meeting
Meeting

S oadiiiats
Campus Clean-up & Gift
Cert.

Gif} Certificates
Gift Certificaws
Mectings
Meetings
Meetings
Graduation
Meetings
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3 Kathy Ringdahi
34 Dee Jensen
6 Tami Matejock

23 Tami Mategeek
5 Tami Matejeck
18 Tami Matefcek
13 Vivian Bernotas
33 Vivian Bernotas
30 Vivian Bernotas
35 Yivian Bemolas
10 Vivian Bernotas
24 hcqueline Kaler
72 Mike Johnson
30 Mike Johnson

16 Nadine Torgerson
1?2 Nadige Torgetsen

10 Nagine Torgemson
4 Barb Bang
4 Basb Bang

30 Barb Bang

15 Barb Bang
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